THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM SOUTH CAROLINA
WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION

Appellate Case No. 2014-001815

RECEIVED

OCT 29 2015

SC Court of Appeals

Clarence Winfrey, Employee, Appellant,

v.

Archway Services, Inc., Employer,
and American Fire & Casualty Insurance
Company, Carrier, Respondents.

FINAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

Preston F. McDaniel, Esquire
MCDANIEL LAW FIRM
1315 Elmwood Avenue
Columbia, South Carolina 29201
(803) 771-7211

Attorney for Appellant

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM SOUTH CAROLINA
WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION

Appellate Case No. 2014-001815

RECEIVED

OCT 29 2015

SC Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

- I. WHERE THE RESPONDENTS ARE THE MOVING PARTY UNDER SC CODE §42-9-260, WHETHER THE COMMISSION ERRED AS A MATTER OF LAW BY HOLDING THAT THE DEFENDANTS/RESPONDENTS DO NOT HAVE THE BURDEN OF PROOF TO PROVE THAT THEY CONDUCTED A GOOD FAITH INVESTIGATION ALLOWING THEM TO STOP BENEFITS WITHOUT A HEARING AND BY SHIFTING THE BURDEN OF PROOF TO THE APPELLANT TO PROVE THAT THE DEFENDANTS/RESPONDENTS DID, "NOT" CONDUCT A GOOD FAITH INVESTIGATION.
- II. WHETHER THE COMMISSION ERRED AS A MATTER OF LAW BY NOT ORDERING REINSTATEMENT OF BENEFITS WHERE THE RESPONDENTS FAILED TO COMPLY WITH THE MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS OF SC CODE §42-9-260.
- III. WHETHER THE COMMISSION ABUSED ITS DISCRETION BY CONSIDERING THE LATE FILED PRE-HEARING BRIEF AND THE LATE FILED APA SUBMISSIONS OF THE RESPONDENTS.
- IV. WHETHER THE COMMISSION ERRED BY EXCLUDING EVIDENCE FROM THE APPELLANT AFTER SEPTEMBER 15, 2013 WHICH DENIED HIM DUE PROCESS OF LAW.
- V. WHETHER THE HEARING COMMISSIONER ERRED AS A MATTER OF LAW BY HOLDING AN UNRECORDED PRE-HEARING CONFERENCE, OVER TWO HOURS IN LENGTH, DURING WHICH HE MADE SUBSTANTIVE DECISIONS ON MOTIONS THAT WERE NOT PROPERLY NOTICED FOR HEARING AND DURING WHICH THE PARTIES' STATED AND ARGUED THEIR POSITIONS ON THE ISSUES BEFORE THE HEARING COMMISSIONER.
- VI. WHETHER THE HEARING COMMISSIONER ERRED AS A MATTER OF LAW IN HIS ANCILLARY ORDER CONCERNING THE MOTIONS THAT HAD BEEN FILED.
- VII. WHETHER THE COMMISSION ERRED AS A MATTER OF LAW BY AFFIRMING FINDING OF FACT #2 THAT THE APPELLANT SUFFERED A MYOCARDIAL INFARCTION, "ON MAY 28, 2013".
- VIII. WHETHER THE COMMISSION ERRED AS A MATTER OF LAW BY MAKING A FINDING OF FACT THAT IS NOT SUPPORTED BY THE EVIDENCE THAT AN INVESTIGATION WAS CONDUCTED AS FOUND IN FINDING OF FACTS #6

AND #10 AND BY MAKING FINDINGS IN FINDINGS OF
FACT #4 THROUGH #11 WHICH ARE NOT SUPPORTED BY
THE TESTIMONY, STIPULATIONS OR DOCUMENTARY
EVIDENCE IN THE RECORD.

IX. WHETHER THE HEARING COMMISSIONER ERRED AS A MATTER OF
LAW BY DELAYING A DECISION FROM NOVEMBER 13, 2013
UNTIL DECEMBER 5, 2013.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On May 22, 2013, the Claimant's (Appellant here) left hand came in contact with a 240-480 volt line resulting in a severe electrical shock entering his left hand and running throughout his arm, left shoulder, neck and upper left quadrant of his chest with immediate, continual and worsening pain in those areas thereafter. After the injury which had been immediately reported that day, May 22nd, on May 27th the Claimant went to the Minute Clinic for that severe pain. On May 28, 2013, the Appellant went from Doctor's Care to a cardiologist and from there via ambulance to the Emergency Room across the street where he was hospitalized. (R., p. 169). The insurance carrier accepted the claim, medical care was authorized and thereafter Temporary Total Disability benefits were started. On June 5, 2013, a Notice of Representation and formal claim (hereinafter forms referred to as "WCC Form #") was filed with the SC Workers' Compensation Commission by Counsel for the Appellant. (R. pp. 34-36). After confirmation of coverage, on June 12, 2013, the South Carolina Workers' Compensation Commission wrote the Defendants, attaching the WCC Form 50 claim that had been filed with the Commission, informing them that they had not properly filed a First Report of Injury. (R., pp. 611-612).

The appropriate forms including the First Report of Injury and the forms noting the starting of benefits and the payment of medical care were not properly filed with the Commission and on July 23, 2013, the Defendants paid a \$200.00 fine to the SC Workers' Compensation Commission for the failure to file the proper forms. (R., p. 613).

Benefits were continued throughout the summer including the authorization and payment of all medical care and temporary total weekly disability benefits at the rate of \$426.69 per week. On September 15, 2013 (less than 150 days after the accepted injury) the workers' compensation insurance carrier's adjuster by letter with one copy of a WCC Form 15(II) attached, notified the Appellant through his attorney that they had stopped payment of benefits. (R., pp. 37-38). The WCC Form 15(II) stopped payment without a hearing on the basis that, "based on a good faith investigation, the claim is denied". No required explanation for the stop payment without a hearing was attached, however a WCC Form 19 Status Report and Compensation Receipt Notice was attached. (R., p. 39).

On September 18, 2013 via email and US Mail to the adjuster and Defense Counsel and via hand delivery to the Commission, a WCC Form 15(III) Request for Hearing to Reinstate Benefits concerning the stop payment of temporary

total disability benefits and medical care was served and filed with the Commission. (R., pp. 40-42). On September 18, 2013, a Notice of Deposition of the adjuster, as Managing Agent for the insurance carrier, along with a Subpoena for the production of a complete copy of the adjuster's file was served by personal service on Defense Counsel setting the deposition for October 2, 2013. (R., pp. 43-46). By separate cover letter dated September 23, 2013, the WCC Form 15(III) Request for Hearing was again served via hand delivery at the SC Workers' Compensation Commission and via email and US Mail on both the adjuster and the attorney for the Defendants. (R., pp. 614-621).

On September 27, 2013, a Motion to Quash the Subpoena for the adjuster and for the production of the adjuster's file was filed via US Mail with the Commission. (R., pp. 47-56).

Also on September 27, 2013, a Hearing Notice was served on the parties via email for a hearing to be held on November 13, 2013 with the subject being; **"To Determine If Claimant's Temporary Compensation Was Legally Terminated."** (R., p. 57).

On October 7, 2013, a Reply to Defendants' Motion to Quash was filed by the Claimant. (R., pp. 58-64). On October 11, 2013, a Notice of Deposition was served by

regular mail setting the Claimant's deposition ten (10) days later on October 21, 2013. (R., pp. 65-67). On October 21, 2013, a Motion for Continuance and/or Postponement of the Scheduled Hearing was filed by the Defendants with the Commission because of a Declaratory Judgment Action filed by the Claimant challenging the constitutionality of SC Code §42-9-260 as to the subsections applicable to stopping benefits without a hearing and because the Claimant did not attend the deposition on October 21, 2013. (R., pp. 68-137). Also, by Motion of that same date, the Defendants filed a separate Motion to Compel the deposition of the Claimant. (R., pp. 138-146). (On October 29, 2013, the deposition of the Claimant was rescheduled by agreement and was taken on November 1, 2013.) (R., pp. 58-64).

On October 30, 2013, the Claimant filed his Pre-Hearing Brief and APA Submissions. (R., pp. 150-183). On October 31, 2013, the Claimant filed a Reply to the Motion for Continuance and/or Postponement of a Scheduled Hearing and also filed a Reply to the Motion to Compel Deposition of the Claimant and for Sanctions, Costs, Fees and/or Other Relief Deemed Appropriate by the Commission. (R., pp. 184-191; pp. 192-208).

By letter/service by mail dated November 4, 2013 for the November 13, 2013 hearing (due 15 days before hearing),

the Defendants filed late their Pre-Hearing Brief and Notice of Witnesses and written medical reports (due 15 days before hearing) with the Commission and Claimant's Counsel. (R., pp. 209-265). On November 5, 2013, the Defendants also filed late an Amended Pre-Hearing Brief and Supplemental Notice of Witnesses and Written Medical Reports (due 15 days before hearing) for the November 13, 2013 hearing. (R., pp. 266-272). On November 7, 2013, the Claimant filed Objections to the Defendant's belated Pre-Hearing Brief and APA Submissions and belated Supplemental and Amended Pre-Hearing Brief and APA Submissions. (R., pp. 622-624).

The hearing was held on November 13, 2013; which started, according to the Record at 3:50 p.m., although scheduled for 1:45 p.m. (R., p. 57, 375). Prior to going on the Record, the Hearing Commissioner held an off-the-Record conference approximately two hours long in which he notified the parties that he would decide the Motions and verbally decided the Motions which was confirmed by written Order subsequent thereto. He also made numerous rulings on evidence and on the submission of the Defendants' Pre-Hearing Brief and APA Submissions which appears in the subsequent Orders issued on both the Motions and on the Form 15(III) Hearing. (R., pp. 1-6; 375-383).

After the hearing on November 27, 2013, some fourteen (14) days later, Counsel for the Claimant filed a Request as to the status of the Commissioner's Order on the Form 15(III) Hearing with a copy to Counsel for the Defendants. (R., pp. 625-626). A responsive letter was filed by the Defendants with the Commissioner on December 3, 2013 and on December 5, 2013, Counsel for the Claimant filed a responsive letter objecting to certain statements and non-evidentiary facts made in the Defendants' December 3rd letter and requested a conference on the Record. (R., pp. 627-628; p. 629).

On December 5, 2013, the Hearing Commissioner issued two Orders: one Order being, "Order on Parties' Motions"; and the other being the Decision and Order on the Form 15(III) Hearing held on November 13, 2013. (R., pp. 1-6; pp. 7-15). A Form 30 Request for Commission Review was filed as to both Orders on December 18, 2013. (R., pp. 273-292). After briefing, with the Claimant/ Appellant's Brief being filed on February 28, 2014 and the Defendants' responsive Brief being filed on March 14, 2014, a hearing was held on the Request for Review on May 19, 2014. (R., pp. 293-319; pp. 320-338; pp. 583-610). A request for Proposed Order was forwarded to Counsel for the Defendants

on June 6, 2014. (R., pp. 630-631). The proposed Order was subsequently submitted and the Full Commission Order was issued on July 25, 2014. (R., pp. 16-33). The Claimant/Appellant filed a timely Notice of Intent to Appeal with a detailed attached Grounds for the Appeal and/or Errors of Law for presentation to this Court on August 25, 2014. (R., pp. 339-356). This Appeal follows and is one of three Appeals from three separate Orders issued by the SC Workers' Compensation Commission: this appeal being from the two Orders issued by Commissioner Beck based on the Form 15 (III) Hearing and the other two Appeals being one by the Defendants/Appellants from the Decision of Commissioner Susan Barden awarding the Claimant reinstatement of temporary total disability benefits and medical care as causally related to the accident; and the other Appeal being by the Claimant as an Appellant from the Decision of the Full Commission modifying and reversing Commissioner Barden's Decision on one issue: that being the Full Commission denied the Claimant any entitlement to and from ever claiming any benefits for medical care or otherwise to the head and/or brain resulting from the injury. After filing, Mediation was attempted under the Pilot Program of this Court which resulted in an impasse, the rescheduling of the Briefing of these matters and this

Appeal is now before the Court for Decision. The Declaratory Judgment Action as to the constitutionality of SC Code §42-9-260(B), (1-6) is still pending in Circuit Court.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

This was a WCC Form 15(III) hearing. Following the accident on May 22, 2013 compensation benefits and medical care were started and authorized. SC Code §42-9-260(A) specifically provides that, "upon making the first payment, the employer immediately shall notify the Commission, in accordance with a form prescribed by the Commission, that payment of compensation has begun." The Defendants while having started benefits did not comply with the Statute by filing the required form and notification and the Commission fined the Defendants for non-compliance for not filing a Form 12A or initial Form 15(I) which was admitted. (R., pp. 611-612; p. 613). On September 15th, one hundred and eighteen (118) days after the accident, the Claimant's attorney (Appellant in this Court) received one copy of a Form 15(III) terminating benefits on the basis that: "based on a Good Faith Investigation, the claim is denied." No required proof of service was attached. (R., pp. 37-39). [See: SCWCC Form 15; Rule 67-201(B)(1) and 504(A)]. Pursuant to the requirements of the Regulations there was

no attached documentation as to the Good Faith Investigation that was alleged to have been performed and/or the results of that investigation. [See: SCWCC Reg. 67-504(A)]. The only additional information contained on the form as to the basis being that was supposedly found during the alleged Good Faith Investigation states the reason denied: "employee failed to meet the burden of a compensable injury under the South Carolina Workers' Compensation Act." (R., pp. 37-39).

On September 18th and 21st Mr. Winfrey filed and served a Form 15(III) Request for Hearing with the Commission and the Defendants. (R., pp. 40-42).

In an effort to determine whether a Good Faith Investigation was conducted and the results of that alleged Investigation, which lead to a termination of benefits without a hearing, the Claimant subpoenaed the adjuster as the, "Managing Agent", to a deposition and subpoenaed the adjuster's file requesting any and all records maintained by the adjuster and/or the employer in reference to the claim. (R., p. 43). While a Motion to Quash was filed, no Order was issued quashing the Subpoena prior to the date set for the deposition on October 2, 2013 and the adjuster failed to appear at the time for the deposition even though the Defendants were placed on notice that the deposition

would go forward barring an Order quashing the Subpoena as to both the adjuster and the adjuster's file. A Reply was filed to the Motion to Quash on October 7, 2013. The Defendants also filed Motions for Continuance/Postponement, to compel Deposition and for sanctions.

A Hearing Notice was issued on Friday, September 27th via email at 4:46 o'clock p.m. setting a hearing for November 13, 2013 at 1:45 o'clock p.m., listing as its, "Subject: To determine if Claimant's temporary compensation was legally terminated." For the hearing set for November 13th, the Defendants as the moving party were required to file their APA Submissions fifteen (15) days prior to the scheduled hearing on or before October 30th (Note: the employer/carrier are deemed to be the moving party in all hearings under Reg. 67-504(C). (R., pp. 381, ll. 21-22.) The Defendants, not only did not file their Pre-Hearing Brief and APA Submissions on October 30th, they did not even file them ten (10) days before the hearing as is required for a responding party, and first filed a Pre-Hearing Brief dated and being served on November 4, 2013, nine (9) days before the hearing, and subsequently filed an Amended Pre-Hearing Brief and Supplemental APAs on November 5th, 2013; eight (8) days before the hearing. (R., pp. 209-265; pp. 266-272).

On November 7, 2013, the Claimant filed a formal objection to the consideration of the Pre-Hearing Brief and APA Submissions of the Defendants and placed objections to various documents that would be submitted to the Commissioner. (R., pp. 622-624).

At the time for hearing, the Commissioner held a lengthy, over two (2) hour off-the-Record Pre-Hearing Conference. During that Conference, the Commissioner advised that while not on the Hearing Notice, he was going to proceed with all of the Motions, heard those Motions, and then entered Decisions from the Bench on those Motions, which are reflected in the Order not issued until December 5, 2013. (R., pp. 1-6). In addition during the Pre-Hearing Conference that was not recorded the Commissioner made numerous decisions on evidence. The Claimant stated his position that under the Statute the Defendants are the moving party and have the burden of proof to establish the Grounds upon which they allege they stopped benefits. The Claimant moved and argued to exclude the Defendants' APA Submissions and Pre-Hearing Brief on the basis of their failure to comply with the Act. The Claimant also reiterated his argument made in his Pre-Hearing Brief that because the Defendants had failed to file the Form 15(I) as required by the Statute when benefits were started, they

were barred from taking the benefit of the provisions of SC Code §42-9-260. Counsel further argued that because of their failure to comply with the Statute in that regard which is mandatory as to the filing of that form, and because they failed to file two (2) copies of the Form 15(II) on the Claimant and failed to attach, "documentation attached as to the reason for termination or suspension"; that the Defendants had completely failed to comply with the Statute and could not stop benefits and pursuant to the mandatory provisions of the Act under SC Code §42-9-260(G), the Defendants had to pay the 25% penalty and had to reinstate benefits withheld in violation of the Code Section which specifically provides that, "the penalty and payment of benefits is mandatory for non-compliance with any part of the Section". The Commissioner ruled that in his discretion he was going to admit the belatedly filed APAs and Pre-Hearing Brief; consider testimony from any witnesses that the Defendants wanted to put up; but would consider only any APA Submissions prior to, up to, and including the date that the Defendants gave verbal notice of their decision to stop benefits on September 15th. However, the Commissioner also ruled that the same restriction on evidence applied to the Claimant and the Commissioner would not consider any evidence from the

Claimant or any of the APAs from either party that were dated after September 15th. (R., p. 1-6; pp. 7-15).

However, the Record only reflects that the position of the parties was set out during the Pre-Hearing Conference (R., p. 381, ll. 10-12) and that the parties agreed that the sole purpose of the hearing was to determine whether or not the Defendants properly stopped the Claimant's benefits under SC Code §42-9-260. (R., p. 381, ll. 12-16). (The Claimant would request that the Court note that Decisions were also made on the Motions that had been filed which the Commissioner heard and decided in an unrecorded Pre-Hearing Conference; R., p. 1-6). Twenty-two (22) days after the hearing on December 5th, the Commissioner filed two (2) separate Orders, one addressing the Motions and one denying the Claimant's entitlement to have benefits reinstated. The Commissioner denied reinstatement on the basis that the Defendants had alleged and asserted to the Commissioner that they had conducted a Good Faith Investigation; that the Claimant bears the burden of proof to prove that the Defendants did not conduct a Good Faith Investigation; and specifically held that it is only necessary that the Defendants had, "represented to the Commission they conducted a Good Faith Investigation of the claim" . . . and that, "the Claimant did not provide any evidence that

Defendants conducted their investigation in anything other than good faith" and that therefore, "a belief of Defendants formed following a Good Faith Investigation that Appellant had not met his burden of proving compensability is adequate grounds for denial of the claim by the Defendants." (Emp. add.) (R., pp. 7-15). From that Decision and the Decision on the Motions, this appeal follows:

ARGUMENTS

- I. WHERE THE RESPONDENTS ARE THE MOVING PARTY UNDER SC CODE §42-9-260, THE COMMISSION ERRED AS A MATTER OF LAW BY HOLDING THAT THE DEFENDANTS/RESPONDENTS DO NOT HAVE THE BURDEN OF PROOF TO PROVE THAT THEY CONDUCTED A GOOD FAITH INVESTIGATION ALLOWING THEM TO STOP BENEFITS WITHOUT A HEARING AND BY SHIFTING THE BURDEN OF PROOF TO THE APPELLANT TO PROVE THAT THE DEFENDANTS/RESPONDENTS DID, "NOT" CONDUCT A GOOD FAITH INVESTIGATION?

The Commissioner found both as a fact and as a ruling of law that the Defendants/Respondents (hereinafter "Respondents"), "represented to the Commission" that they had conducted a Good Faith Investigation and further that they, "represented" that the reasons for the denial was a, "good faith belief", based on their Investigation that the Appellant had not met his burden of establishing compensable injury. The Commissioner then went on to find that the Appellant, "did not provide any evidence," that the Respondents had not conducted a Good Faith Investigation and that the Respondents', "good faith

belief" that the Appellant had not met his burden of proof of proving compensability was adequate grounds to deny the claim. Since the Respondents are the moving party under the Statute and the Commission Regulations, the Commission erred by shifting the burden of proof from the Respondents to the Appellant.

First, the Respondents as the moving party have the burden of proof under SC Code §42-9-260 and under the Commission Regulations implementing the Statute. SC Code §42-9-260(B) provides specifically in pertinent part that,

"once temporary disability benefits are commenced, the payments may be terminated . . .
 . if:"

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