THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM THE SOUTH CAROLINA
WORKERS COMPENSATION COMMISSION

RECEIVED

OCT 29 2015

SC Court of Appeals

Appellant Case No. 2014-001815

Clarence Winfrey Appellant,

v.

Archway Services Inc, Employer, and
American Fire & Casualty Insurance Company, and
Liberty Mutual Group, Carrier, Respondents,

RESPONDENTS' FINAL BRIEF

McANGUS GOUDELOCK & COURIE, L.L.C.
Brett H. Bayne
Meridian 10th Floor
1320 Main Street
P.O. Box 12519
Columbia, South Carolina 29211-2519
(803) 779-2300

*Attorneys for Appellants, Archway Services Inc.,
American Fire & Casualty Insurance Company,
and Liberty Mutual Group*

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

ARGUMENT

Appellant notified Employer he was shocked while working on a rotisserie oven on May 22, 2013. (R. p. 222). Employment records of Appellant indicate that he continued working the remainder of the day and the entire following day. (R. p. 224-25). An email from Appellant to Employer indicates that he was experiencing only neck pain on May 27, 2013 (5 days post-accident). (R. p. 223). Appellant first presented to Doctor's Care on May 28, 2013 (6 days post-accident) complaining that he woke up sweating that morning (6 days post-accident) (R. p. 215). Appellant was treated by Dr. Greenfield at Doctors' Care. Dr. Greenfield noted that Appellant had some tenderness in his shoulder and neck area. Id. Further, Dr. Greenfield noted that Appellant did not complain of any chest pressure. Id.

Dr. Greenfield testified in her deposition that the testing she conducted could not give any indication as to when Appellant suffered the myocardial infarction. Specifically, Dr. Greenfield stated that the myocardial infarction "...could have been 5 days ago..." and further admitted that the acute myocardial infarction could have occurred the evening of May 27 or the morning of May 28. (R. p. 448, line 10 – p. 449, line 8). Further, Dr. Greenfield indicated that she based portions of her opinion on articles that she read relating to electrocution from lightning strikes. When asked about these articles, Dr. Greenfield admitted the voltage involved in those articles was 10,000,000 volts—an amount that is 20,000-40,000 times higher than the voltage involved in this claim. (R. p. 464, line 19 – p. 465, line 4). Additionally, Dr. Greenfield stated that Appellant presented without any chest pain. (R. p. 452, line 5-9, p. 460, line 3-8). Dr. Greenfield also noted the pain in Appellant's arm and shoulder was not indicative of having sustained a

myocardial infarction. (R. p. 452, line 13-25). Dr. Greenfield issued a written opinion stating Appellant's heart condition was caused by the electrical shock.

Appellant was then referred to and saw Dr. Dasgupta at the South Carolina Heart Center on May 28. Dr. Dasgupta also noted sweating and noted that Appellant denied chest pain but did have minimal left shoulder pain. (R. p. 216). Dr. Dasgupta diagnosed Appellant with an acute myocardial infarction. Id. Dr. Dasgupta indicated that Appellant had a prior history of hypertension, tobacco abuse (one pack a day smoker), as well as a significant family history for heart disease (Appellant's father passed away from coronary disease and myocardial infarction). (R. p. 216-17). Dr. Dasgupta also noted that Appellant appeared to have a ventricular septal defect as a possible completion of his acute myocardial infarction. (R. p. 216). Dr. Dasgupta referred Appellant to Lexington Medical Center where Dr. Travis performed surgery to repair an acute ventricular septal defect that formed following the myocardial infarction. (R. p. 219-21).

Dr. Travis described the mechanism of Appellant's injury as being a plaque rupture that caused a myocardial infarction that caused the ventricular septal defect. (R. p. 415, line 24 – p. 416, line 2). Dr. Travis indicated that plaque ruptures can be caused by many things including getting up the wrong way from a couch, strenuous activity, stressful events in your personal life, emotional stresses, and many other things. (R. 416, line 3-11). Further, Dr. Travis was asked "...other than the timing of the heart attack...there's no way to know for certain the plaque rupture was caused by the electrical shock, is that correct?" (R. p. 416, line 12-15). Dr. Travis response was that "[i]s there a definitive way to—collate one to another absolutely not." (R. p. 416, line 16-18) (emphasis added). Dr. Travis also stated that "the [electrical shock] *could* of started

the whole domino effect.” (R. p. 431, line 23-24) (emphasis added). Finally, Dr. Travis indicated that the neck pain Appellant experienced “could be just neck pain.” (R. p. 432, line 12-16).

Dr. Travis indicated that part of his opinion formed because of the presence of a plaque on Appellant’s heart. However, Dr. Travis stated that this was his first open heart surgery on a patient who had received an electrical shock. (R. p. 431, line 2-5). Further, Dr. Travis stated that he had never “read about or seen anything” related to whether or not the plaque he observed is related to electrical shock or whether or not the plaque he observed is common in electrical shock. (R. p. 431, line 6-12). Following the care provided to Appellant, Dr. Travis issued a written opinion stating Appellant’s heart condition was caused by the electrical shock.

After the surgery, Appellant began treating with Dr. Lide on an outpatient basis for his heart condition. In his deposition, Dr. Lide stated that no one knows what causes a plaque rupture in the heart. (R. p. 551, line 13-15). Dr. Lide agreed with the statement that “...we don’t really know what causes plaque rupture.” (R. p. 551, line 16-22). Dr. Lide also testified that “I don’t know whether the electrical shock caused the plaque rupture... .” (R. p. 552, line 14-15). Further, Dr. Lide testified that he is not familiar with any research and he has not conducted any research on whether an electrical shock can cause a myocardial infarction or a ventricular septal defect. (R. p. 556, line 13 – p. 557, line 1). Dr. Lide also indicated that the longer in time the heart condition develops from the precipitating event (in this case an electrical shock), the less likely it is the heart condition is related to the electrical shock. (R. p. 557, line 2-6). Finally, Dr. Lide stated his overwhelming evidence that the electrical shock caused Appellant’s condition was

“proximity in time.” (R. p. 557, line 20-21). Dr. Lide issued a written opinion stating Appellant’s heart condition was caused by the electrical shock.

CONSTITUTIONAL ESTOPPEL/JURISDICTIONAL ISSUES

At the outset, Respondents assert that the Commission lacked subject matter jurisdiction to conduct any hearing on any part of the claim underlying this appeal and this court should vacate all Decisions and Orders in this case and remand the case to the Commission with instructions to hold the case until the Circuit Court has issued a ruling on Appellant's lawsuit alleging S.C. Code Ann § 42-9-260 is unconstitutional.

Commissioner Beck ultimately denied Respondents motion related to this issue on the basis that the Act requires a hearing be set within 60 days. However, the Act states that a moving party may postpone the hearing. As Appellant has vigorously argued in his briefs, Respondents were the moving party in this matter. When a hearing is set pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 42-9-260, the requirement to hold the hearing within sixty days is waived pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. Reg. 67-613(B)(3). That regulation states the hearing will be postponed until the following month and if the commissioner cannot hear the case by the following month, the case will be returned to the Judicial Department for reassignment. Because of the underlying declaratory judgment action filed by Appellant, the Commission did not have jurisdiction to hear this matter and should have complied with S.C. Code Ann. Reg. 67-613(B)(3) by returning the case to the Judicial Department and indefinitely postponing the hearing until the circuit court could make a decision on Appellant's Complaint.

Appellant has alleged an injury by accident during the course and scope of his employment due to electrical shock on May 22, 2013. Respondents denied the claim on or about September 16, 2013 following a good faith investigation pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 42-9-260(B)(3). Appellant responded to the denial of benefits by filing a

Summons and Complaint on September 27, 2013 in the South Carolina Circuit Court alleging:

- a. A bad faith denial of benefits;
- b. That S.C. Code Ann. § 42-9-260 is unconstitutional and requesting a Declaratory Judgment to that effect; and
- c. Moving for a temporary restraining order to force Respondents to pay benefits outside of the jurisdiction of the South Carolina Workers' Compensation Commission.

Appellant improperly sought and obtained a temporary restraining order from Judge Alison Renee Lee on October 1, 2013 ordering Respondents to pay temporary compensation benefits and provide medical care to Appellant. Respondents filed a Motion to Dismiss and a Brief in Support of the Motion to Dismiss the temporary restraining order and the underlying Summons and Complaint with Judge Lee on or about October 2, 2013. Judge Lee conducted a hearing on the temporary restraining order on October 8, 2013 and dismissed the temporary restraining order on October 9, 2013 stating "[t]he Commission has the sole authority to reinstate benefits if appropriate." However, Judge Lee did not dismiss the Declaratory Judgment action against Respondents finding that legal challenges to a statute are "...properly raised for the first time...in a declaratory judgment action before the circuit court." Respondents filed an Answer and Counterclaim with the South Carolina Circuit Court on October 21, 2013.

Appellant has specifically alleged that "...the provisions of S.C. Code Ann. § 42-9-260...(A) violated the [Appellant's] right to due process of law...(B) that the provisions of §42-9-260 are in direct conflict with provisions of the Administrative

Procedures Act concerning notice and hearing...and (C) denies the [Appellant] equal protection of the laws by creating an irrational classification...” Appellant has also stated “...pursuant to S.C. Code §42-9-260 the constitutionality of which is the basis of the Declaratory Judgment Relief requested.” In addition, Appellant presented to the Circuit Court a signed Verification asserting that the allegations and issues raised in the Complaint are true, accurate, and with merit. Appellant also filed a Motion for a New Trial with the South Carolina Circuit Court asking for a “...preliminary or prima facie determination that [S.C. Code Ann. § 42-9-260] is unconstitutional...”

Appellant simultaneously requested a hearing before this Commission pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 42-9-260—the very statute he seeks to invalidate as unconstitutional in the ongoing companion Circuit Court case. It strains belief that on one hand Appellant has argued at length to the Circuit Court that S.C. Code Ann. § 42-9-260 is unconstitutional and on the other hand demands relief from the Commission under the same statute. This inapposite position must be resolved before the Commission can entertain Appellant’s allegations related to the workers’ compensation claim—including a hearing on the denial of benefits. Further, if the Circuit Court finds S.C. Code Ann. § 42-9-260 unconstitutional—as Appellant demands—the South Carolina Workers’ Compensation Commission would have no guidance under the law to conduct a hearing for the suspension or termination of benefits¹. Additionally, if the Circuit Court finds S.C. Code Ann. § 42-9-260 unconstitutional—as Appellant demands—the underlying purpose of the scheduled hearing before the South Carolina Workers’ Compensation Commission,

¹ Incidentally, Defendants would also have no guidance under the law on how to pay, terminate, and/or suspend benefits.

specifically to rule on the denial of benefits pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 42-9-260, would be rendered unconstitutional.

Respondents contend that the Commission may only conduct the 42-9-260 hearing (or any other hearing) in this claim once the Circuit Court has ruled on the constitutionality of S.C. Code Ann. § 42-9-260 pursuant to Appellant's demand. Pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. Reg. 67-613(B)(1)(e), any hearing in this matter was premature pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 42-9-260 where the underlying constitutionality issues raised by Appellant and under consideration by the Circuit Court have not yet been adjudicated.

Constitutional Estoppel is a principle which holds that a party cannot avail himself of the provisions of a statute while also reversing his position and contending the law under which he sought to avail himself is invalid. Typically this issue arises when a party proceeds with an action, loses, and then asserts the law the party sought recovery under is unconstitutional. However, Respondents contend this principle is a two-way street, so to speak. Specifically, constitutional estoppel should prevent a party from seeking the protections and/or benefits under the same statute the party asserts is unconstitutional.

It is an elementary rule of constitutional law that **one may not 'retain the benefits of the Act while attacking the constitutionality of one of its important conditions.'** *Fahey v. Mallonee*, 332 U.S. 245, 67 S.Ct. 1552, 91 L.Ed. 2030 (1947) *citing* *United States v. City and County of San Francisco*, 310 U.S. 16, 29, 60 S.Ct. 749, 756, 84 L.Ed. 1050 (1940). While the majority of these cases deal with regulatory authorities and federal statutes, the principles are the same—you cannot simultaneously

obtain benefits under a statute while arguing the same statute it is unconstitutional. Because the constitutionality of 42-9-260, as challenged by Appellant, is grossly material to the underlying proceedings, the Commission did not have jurisdiction, and Appellant did not have standing, to conduct a hearing before the Commission prior to an adjudication of the merits before the Circuit Court.

Therefore, for the foregoing reasons, this court should rule any hearing before the Commission should have been postponed until such time as the Circuit Court could rule on the constitutionality of S.C. Code Ann. § 42-9-260 pursuant to Appellant's demands. Only after the Circuit Court has ruled on the constitutionality of S.C. Code Ann. § 42-9-260—as demanded by Appellant—would any issue raised by Appellant before the Commission be ripe for a hearing before the Commission. In other words, Appellant's choice to vigorously pursue a claim that the Act is unconstitutional strips the Commission of jurisdiction over compensability until such time as the Circuit Court can rule on the matter. Therefore, this court must vacate all prior Orders and remand this matter to the Commission with instructions to hold the case until such time as the Circuit Court rules on Appellant's Declaratory Judgment.

LEGAL ARGUMENT ON APPELLANT'S ISSUES RAISED ON APPEAL

- I. THE COMMISSION DID NOT SHIFT THE BURDEN OF PROOF TO APPELLANT AND DID NOT ERR AS A MATTER OF LAW BY DETERMINING APPELLANT WAS REQUIRED TO PRESENT REBUTTAL EVIDENCE PROVING RESPONDENTS DID NOT CONDUCT A GOOD FAITH INVESTIGATION AFTER THE COMMISSION DETERMINED RESPONDENTS HAD MET THE REQUIREMENTS FOR CONDUCTING A GOOD FAITH INVESTIGATION PURSUANT TO S.C. CODE ANN. § 42-9-260.**

The record is clear that the Commission reviewed all of the evidence relevant to the hearing², including testimony and representations of counsel, and rendered a decision on whether or not Respondents conducted a good faith investigation as required by S.C. Code § 42-9-260. The record is also clear that the Commission determined by a preponderance of the evidence (i.e. more likely than not) that Respondents conducted a good faith investigation based on the medical records available by statute at the time of the denial of benefits³, records of the Nurse Case Manager⁴, the medical records provided by Appellant's counsel to Respondents' counsel on June 26, 2013⁵, as well as the Form 15 filed in this case⁶. There is no dispute that the burden rests with Respondents in proving that a good faith investigation occurred by a preponderance of the evidence. Respondents clearly met that burden as set out in the Commission's Decision and Order. Nowhere in the Commission's Decision and Order does the Commission state that Appellant has the initial burden of proving Respondents did not conduct a good faith

² As will be discussed further in other exceptions raised by Claimant/Appellant, the relevant evidence for this hearing was limited to only the evidence dated prior to the denial of benefits as that would have been the only evidence available to Defendants to make a decision on compensability.

³ See R. p. 31-32

⁴ Id.

⁵ See R. p. 28

⁶ See R. p. 28, p. 30-31

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